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UNITED STATES DISTRICT court ' ILED BY—»—X—
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 97 0CT -8 10: 09

SECURITIES8 AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 9? b .,
28 ¥PIV-R KA P

COMPLAINT FOWAGIS‘;;%EA&UDGE
INJUNCTIVE AND

OTHER RELIEF

Plaintiff,
v.
MEDCO, INC., and MARK R. BLACHER,
Defendants,
and

THE HI LILY COMPANY, and
NATIONWIDE HEALTH SERVICES, INC.,

Relief
Defendants.
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Plaintiff, Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission")
alleges that:

INTRODUCTION

1. The Commission brings this action to restrain and
enjoin Defendants from continuing to violate the federal
securities laws in connection with their ongoing, fraudulent
offer and sale of unregistered securities in the form of
promissory notes. Unless immediately restrained and enjoined,
Defendants will continue to defraud the investing public and
place investor funds at serious risk of diversion and theft.

DEFENDANTS

2. Defendant Medco, Inc. ("Medco") is a South Dakota
corporation incorporated in August 1996, with principal offices
located at 2881 East Oakland Park Boulevard, Suite 100, Ft.

Lauderdale, Florida. \
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3. Defendant Mark R. Blacher ("Blacher") is forty-nine
years old and is the president of Medco.

RELIEF DEFENDANTS

4. Relief Defendant, The Hi Lily Company ("Hi Lily"), has
been a Florida corporation since February 1995. Hi Lily,
incorporated by Blacher, has received at least $319,515.00 in
investor funds from Medco.

5. Relief Defendant, Nationwide Health Services, Inc.
("Nationwide"), also incorporated by Blacher, has been a Florida
corporation since February 1997, and lists as its address Medco’s
former business address in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida. Nationwide
has received at least $1,020,781.00 in investor funds from Medco.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. This Court has Jjurisdiction over this action pursuant
to Sections 20(b), 20(d) and 22(a) of the Securities Act of 1933
("Securities Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 77t(b), 77t (d) and 77v(a), and
Sections 21(d), 21(e), and 27 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 ("Exchange Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d), 78u(e) and 78aa.

7. Certain of the acts and transactions constituting
violations of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act have
occurred within the Southern District of Florida. The principal
offices of Defendant Medco is located within the Southern
District of Florida. Defendant Blacher resides in the Southern
District of Florida. Defendants have engaged in many of the acts
and practices complained of herein within the Southern District

of Florida.
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8. Defendants, directly and indirectly, have made use of
the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, the means
and instruments of transportation and communication in interstate
commerce, and the mails, in connection with the acts, practices,
and courses of business complained of herein.

THE FRAUDULENT SCHEME

Background

9. Medco is engaged in the business of leasing out medical
equipment to individuals and corporations. Under its financing
program, Medco raises capital from investors representing that it
will be used to purchase a particular piece or pieces of medical
equipment which will serve as collateral for the investment.
According to Medco, the medical equipment is worth twice the
investor’s principal investment, i.e., the equipment has a 50%
loan to value ratio. Medco provides the investor a lien on the
medical equipment through a security agreement and a Uniform
commercial Code 1 ("UCC 1") filing, and also provides the
investor a pledge of personal property. The investor is also
named as a co-loss payee under an insurance policy insuring the
medical equipment.

10. After purchasing the medical equipment, Medco then
purportedly leases it to individuals and corporations. The
revenues generated from these leases are used to repay the
principal and interest on the investor notes.

11. In the event Medco defaults on the promissory note, the

investor is purportedly protected in two ways: (a) the investor
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is entitled to receive the lease payments directly from the
lessee of the medical equipment and, in the event of default by
the lessee, (b) the investor can foreclose upon the medical
equipment.

Medco’s Offering

12. Since approximately August 1996, Medco has been
offering and selling securities to the general public in the form
of promissory notes. Medco has raised over $16 million from
approximately 400 investors nationwide. Medco promises investors
returns of between 12% and 16% per annum depending upon the
maturity of the note and the amount invested. A one year note,
which requires an investment of less than $50,000, returns 12%, a
two year note, which requires an investment of between $50,000
and $99,000, returns 14%, and a three year note, which requires
an investment of more than $100,000, returns 16%. Interest is
paid monthly during the note’s term and there is no minimum or
maximum investment. Medco, at its discretion, will pay an
investor’s surrender charges on an annuity or similar instrument
if liquidated and invested in Medco.

13. Medco’s notes are offered and sold to the general
public through a number of independent sales agents. Medco pays
its sales agents a 6% commission on the investor’s principal
investment and does not require that the sales agents have
securities licenses. Medco also touts its investment through
advertisements in newspapers across the nation and through its

web page located on the Internet.
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14. Medco’s promissory notes are securities as defined by
Section 2(1) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77b(1), and
Section 3(a) (10) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78c(10). No
registration statement has been filed or is in effect with the
Commission in connection with the securities offered by Medco.

Medco'’s Offering Documents

15. Medco’s offering materials represent to investors that
their funds are secured and collateralized by medical equipment,
the value of which is twice that of the investor’s principal
investment. 1In the offering materials, potential customers are
told that Medco’s investment program is a "secure, high-yield
alternative" to bank certificates of deposit and annuities.
Medco’s offering materials also boast that Medco has '"created one
of the safest, highest-yield fixed income programs in the world."

16. The purported safety and security of the investment is
verbally reinforced to investors by Medco’s sales agents. As in
the offering materials, Medco’s sales agents verbally tell
investors that their funds are fully secured by the value of the
medical equipment and the income streams produced by the leasing
of the medical equipment.

17. Medco’s offering materials tout Blacher'’s background
and his "successful career in the brokerage industry." The
offering materials represent that Blacher is a New York
University law school graduate, worked for Merrill Lynch and

Allen and Company, is on the board of directors of Holy Cross
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Hospital and was an investment advisor to "numerous, privately
and publicly traded companies."

18. Medco’s web page states that Medco has been in business
for sixteen (16) years.

19. Medco’s offering materials also state that medical
equibment lending is the "only" business in which Medco is
engaged, and direct investors to send their funds to "Medco, Inc.
Trust Account", located at First Union National Bank.

Role of Blacher

20. Blacher, as president and sole shareholder of Medco,
manages the day-to-day affairs of the company. Blacher has
direct contact with investors as well as with Medco’s sales
agents. Blacher has solicited at least one prospective investor
by telephone and has communicated with investors in writing.
Blacher recruits sales agents, provides them with Medco’s
offering materials and other promotional materials, touts his
baékground to them and conducts training seminars. Blacher signs
the medical equipment lease agreements on behalf of Medco and has
signature authority over Medco’s bank accounts, including its
"Trust Account."

Material Misrepresentations and Omissions
in Connection with the Offer and Sale of Medco’s Notes

Fictitious lLeasing of Medical Equipment

21. Medco’s representations to investors that it is leasing
all of the medical equipment it has allegedly purchased is false.
Medco, in documents responsive to a subpoena issued to it by the
Florida Department of Banking and Financing ("Florida Department

6
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of Banking"), claimed that it had used approximately $8 million
of investor funds to purchase medical equipment, which is
purportedly being leased to seventeen entities throughout the
nation. Seven of these entities have never leased any medical
equipment from Medco. These seven entities account for over $3.8
million in investor funds which are thus completely unsecured.
The remaining ten lessees account for investor funds totaling
$3.9 million. The equipment actually being leased by these ten
lessees is worth only $423,000, leaving approximately $3.5
million in investor funds under-secured.

22. One purported lessee, Southern Coastal Medical
Equipment Rentals, Inc. ("Southern Coastal"), which Medco claims
is leasing medical equipment purchased with over $1.6 million of
investor funds, does not even exist. Blacher incorporated
Southern Coastal a mere two days before Medco produced documents
to the Florida Department of Banking reflecting that Southern
Coastal is leasing seventeen pieces of high-priced medical
equipment. Southern Coastal’s corporate records reflect that its
business address is that of Medco’s. 1In Medco’s responsive
documents to the Florida Department of Banking’s subpoena,
however, Medco provided a different business address for Southern
Coastal located in Broward County, Florida. That business
address is an empty store-front with a "for rent" sign located in
a strip shopping mall. Southern Coastal has no occupational

license or telephone listing in Broward County.
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Overvaluation of the Collateral

23. Medco’s representations to investors that they are
fully secured are false and misleading because the company has
overvalued the medical equipment -- the collateral for investor
funds. Investor funds in the Medco program are purportedly
secured by the investors’ security interest in the medical
equipment, the value of which is represented to be twice the
value of the investor’s principal investment. The aggregate
value of the medical equipment securing investor funds is equal
only to approximately 60% of the total amount of the relevant
promissory notes. Moreover, at least 173 individual investors
are under-secured.

Blacher’s Background

24. Medco’s offering materials misrepresent and omit
material information concerning Blacher’s background. Contrary
to the representations made in Medco’s offering materials,
Blacher did not obtain a law degree from New York University,
never worked for Merrill Lynch or Allen and Company, was hever
and currently is not a member of the board of directors of Holy
Cross Hospital, and has never been registered as an investment
advisor with the Commission. Furthermore, Blacher failed to
disclose that he was terminated by a now defunct broker-dealer
(Capital Expansion Group, Inc.) in 1986 for falsifying
information on his employment application and Form U-4.

25. Blacher has also orally misrepresented his background

to sales agents telling them that he worked for Merrill Lynch
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and, in one case, as an attorney who formerly represented
companies which were the subject of investigations by securities
regulators.
Medco’s Operating History

26. Medco is misrepresenting its operating history to
investors. 1In its offering materials, Medco states that it has
"marshalled its depth of talent and long history in the medical
and financial fields to forge one of the most exciting low
risk/high return, stable products for the savvy investor." On
its web page, Medco represents that it has been in business for
sixteen years. In fact, Medco first incorporated in August 1996
and only became licensed to do business in Florida in January
1997. Prior to forming Medco, Blacher had no apparent connection
to the medical equipment industry.

27. Medco has also failed to disclose that the states of
Texas and California issued administrative actions against it for
its fraudulent sale of unregistered securities in those states.

Medco’s "Trust Account"

28. Medco’s offering materials represent to investors that
their funds will be held in the "Medco, Inc. Trust Account."
Medco’s "Trust Account" is not a trust or escrow account, but
rather is a business checking account over which Blacher has
signature authority. Investor funds are not secured and
protected as the account name represents, but rather are being

used to pay sales commissions, operating expenses and interest to
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existing investors, and are subject to Medco’s creditors and to
misappropriation and diversion by Blacher.

Evidence of a Ponzi Scheme

29. Medco’s bank records reflect that it is engaged in a
classic Ponzi scheme. Medco is simply using new investor monies
to repay its existing investors and to pay its operating
expenses. The bank records further reflect that very little of
investors’ funds are being used to purchase medical equipment;
instead, Medco has used significant sums of investor funds for
purposes wholly unrelated to Medco’s stated business, such as
"loans" to companies owned by Blacher, the purchase of aircraft,
payment of Blacher’s personal IRS debts and investments in an
internet gaming company. In addition, at least $250,000 of
investor funds have been wired to a bank in Luxembourg. Further,
the two named relief defendants, incorporated and controlled by
Blacher, have received over $1.3 million in investor funds.

COUNT I

SALE OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES IN VIOLATION OF

S8ECTIONS 5(a) AND 5(c) OF THE SECURITIES ACT

30. The Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1
through 29 of this Complaint.

31. No registration statement was filed or in effect with
the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act and no exemption
from registration exists with respect to the securities and

transactions described herein.

10
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32. sSince a date unknown but since at least August 1996
through the present, Defendants Medco and Blacher, directly and
indirectly, have, and unless enjoined, will continue to:

(a) make use of the means or instruments of transportation or
communication in interstate commerce or of the mails to sell
securities as described herein, through the use or medium of a
prospectus or otherwise; (b) carry securities or cause such
securities, as described herein, to be carried through the mails
or in interstate commerce, by any means or instruments of
transportation, for the purpose of sale or delivery after sale;
and/or (c) make use of the means or instruments of transportation
or communication in interstate commerce or of the mails to offer
to sell or offer to buy through the use or medium of any
prospectus or otherwise, as described herein, without a
registration statement having been filed or being in effect with
the Commission as to such securities.

33. By reason of the foregoing, Medco and Blacher, directly
and indirectly, have violated, and unless enjoined, will continue
to violate Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act, 15
U.S5.C. §§ 77e(a) and 77e(c).

COUNT I1

FRAUD IN VIOLATION OF
S8ECTION 17(a) (1) OF THE SECURITIES ACT

34. The Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1
through 29 of the Complaint.

35. Since a date unknown but since at least August 1996
through the present, Defendants Medco and Blacher (as described

11
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in paragraphs 1-29), directly and indirectly, by use of the means
or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate
commerce and by use of the mails, in the offer or sale of
securities, as described herein, have been, knowingly, willfully
or recklessly employing devices, schemes or artifices to defraud.

36. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants Medco and
Blacher, directly and indirectly, have violated and, unless
enjoined, will continue to violate Section 17(a) (1) of the
Securities Act, 15 U.s.cC. § 779(a) (1) .

COUNT III

FRAUD IN VIOLATION OF
S8ECTION 10(b) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT AND RULE 10b-5

37. The Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1
through 29 of its Complaint.

38. Since a date unknown but since at least August 1996
through the present, Defendants Medco and Blacher, directly and
indirectly, by use of the means and instrumentality of interstate
commerce, and of the mails, and of any facility of any national
securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of
the securities, as described herein, have been, knowingly,
willfully or recklessly: (a) employing devices, schemes or
artifices to defraud; (b) making untrue statements of material
facts and omitting to state material facts nhecessary in order to
make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading; and/or (c) engaging in

acts, practices and courses of business which have operated, are

12
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now operating and will operate as a fraud upon the purchasers of
such securities.

39. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants Medco and
Blacher, directly or indirectly, have violated and, unless
enjoined, will continue to violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange
Act, 15 U.s.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. § 240. 10b-5,
thereunder.

COUNT IV

FRAUD IN VIOLATION OF

S8ECTIONS 17(a)(2) AND 17(a) (3) OF THE SECURITIES ACT

40. The Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1
through 29 of its Complaint.

41. Since a date unknown but since at least August 1996
through the present, Defendants Medco and Blacher, directly and
indirectly, by use of the means or instruments of transportation
Or communication in interstate commerce and by the use of the
mails, in the offer or sale of securities, as described herein,
have been: (a) obtaining money or property by means of untrue
statements of material facts and omissions to state material
facts necessary to make the statements made, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and/or
(b) engaging in transactions, practices and courseé of business
which are now operating and will operate as a fraud or deceit
upon purchasers and prospective purchasers of such securities.

42. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants Medco and

Blacher, directly and indirectly, have violated and, unless

13
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enjoined, will continue to violate Sections 17(a) (2) and 17(a) (3)
of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 77(q) (a) (2) and 77(q) (a) (3).
RELIEF REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the
Court:
I.
Declaratory Relief
Declare, determine and find that Defendants Medco and
Blacher committed the violations of the federal securities laws
alleged herein.
II.

Temporary Restraining order,

Preliminary and Permanent Injunctive Relief

Issue a Temporary Restraining Order, a Preliminary
Injunction and a Permanent Injunction, restraining and enjoining
Defendants Medco and Blacher, their officers, agents, servants,
employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them, and each of them, from violating: (a)
Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act, 15 U.s.c. §§ 77e(a)
and 77e(c); (b) Section 17(a) (1) of the Securities Act, 15 U.s.cC.
§ 77q9(a); (c) Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. S
783 (b), and Rule 10b~5, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5, thereunder; and
(d) Sections 17(a) (2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act, 15

U.S.C. §§ 77(q) (a) (2) and 77(q) (a) (3).

14
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III.
Disgorgement
Issue an Order requiring Defendants, Medco and Blacher, and
Relief Defendants, Hi Lily and Nationwide, to disgorge all ill-
gotten profits or proceeds that they have received as a result of
the acts and/or courses of conduct complained of herein, with
prejudgment interest.
Iv.
Penalties
Issue an Order directing Blacher to pay civil money
penalties pursuant to Section 20(d) of the Securities Act, 15
U.S.C. § 77t(d), and Section 21(d) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.s.c.
§ 78(d) (3).
V.
Asset Freeze and Accounting
Issue an Order temporarily freezing the assets of
Defendants, Medco and Blacher, and Relief Defendants, Hi Lily and
Nationwide, until further Order of the Court, and requiring
accountings by Medco, Blacher, Hi Lily and Nationwide.
VI.

Appointment of Receiver

Issue an order appointing a Receiver of the assets of Medco
to marshall and safequard all of said assets, and any other
duties the Court deems appropriate, and to prepare a report to
the Court and the Commission detailing the activities of Medco

and Blacher and the whereabouts of investor funds.

15
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VII.

Records Preservation and Expedited Discovery

Issue an Order requiring Defendants, Medco and Blacher, and
Relief Defendants, Hi Lily and Nationwide, to preserve any
records related to the subject matter of this lawsuit that are in
their custody, possession or subject to their control, and to
respond to discovery on an expedited basis.

VIII.
Repatriation of Investor Proceeds

Issue an Order requiring Defendants, Medco and Blacher, and
Relief Defendants, Hi Lily and Nationwide, to take such steps as
are necessary to repatriate to the territory of the United States
all funds and assets of investors described in the Commission’s
Complaint in this action which are held by them or are under
their direct or indirect contreol, jointly or singly, and deposit
such funds into the registry of the United States District Court
for the Southern District of Florida, and provide the Commission
and the Court a written description of the funds and assets so

repatriated.

IX.

Further Relief

Grant such other and further relief as may be necessary and

appropriate.

16
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X.

Retention of Jurisdiction

Further, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court
retain jurisdiction over this action in order to implement and
carry out the terms of all orders and decrees that may hereby be
entered, or to entertain any suitable application or motion by
the Commission for additional relief within the jurisdiction of

this Court.

Respectfully submltted

|
x

October 8, 1997 ///A%é;(//é7 Z//// R

Charles V. Senatorg s
Regional Director ™~.__/
Florida Bar No. 308935

John C. Mattimore
Assistant Regional Director
Florida Bar No. 0396461

Chedly C. Dumornay
chief, Branch of Enforcement No. 3
Florida Bar No. 0957666

David R. Chase
Senior Counsel
Florida Bar No. 0967970

Attorneys for Plaintiff

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
1401 Brickell Avenue, Suite 200
Miami, Florida 33131

Telephone: (305) 982-6363
Facsimile: (305) 536-7465

17
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